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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT

To the Members of INDUS NET TECHNOLOGIES PRTVATE LIMITED

Report on the Audit of the Standalone Ind AS Financial Statements

We have audited the accompanying Standalone Ind AS Financial Statements of

INDUS NET TECHNOLCiGIES PRTVATE LIMITED ("the Company") which comprise

the Balance Sheet as at 31"t March ,2023, the Statement of Profit and Loss (including

other comprehensive income), the Statement of Changes in Equity and the Cash Flow

Statement for the year then ended, and a summa-ry of significant accounting policies

and other explanatory information.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations

given to us, the aforesaid standalone Ind AS financial statements gives the

information required by the Companies'Act, 2013, as amended ("the Act") in the

manner so required and gives a true and fair view in conformity with the

accounting principles generally accepted in India, of the state of aftairs of the

Company as at March 3l't 2023, its Profit and total Comprehensive Profit, the

statement of changes in equity and the Cash Flow Statement for the year ended on

that date.

Basls for Opinion

We conducted our audit of the standalone Ind AS Financial Statements in

accordance with the Standards on Auditing, as specified under section 1a3(10) of

the Act. Our Responsibilities under those standards are further described in the

Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Standalone Ind AS financial

Statements' section of our report. We are independent of the Company in

accordance with the 'Code of Ethics' issued by the Institute of Chartered

Accountants of India together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our

audit of thefinancial statements under the provisions of the Act and the rules



framed ihere und.er. ald we have iuifilled our other ethical responsibilities in
accordalce with these requirements ald the Code of Ethics. We believe that the

audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient andappropriate to provide a basis for

our audit opinion on the standalone Ind AS financial statements.

Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgrnent, 'nvere of

most significance in our audit of the financial statements of the current period.

Reporting of key audit matters as per SA 701, Key Audit Matters are not applicable

to the Company as it is an unlisted" company.

Emphasis of Matters

We draw attention to the following matter in the note no 46 to the financial

statements, in respect of "Loal outstanding from Algo Energ,tech Ventures Pvt. Ltd",

The management of the company has taken various measures to recovery the loan

amount including interest from Algo Energ,tech Ventures Pvt. Ltd. The management

of the company is confident of t.correry of the loan outstanding. Our report is not

modified in respect of this matter.

Information Other than the Financial Statements and Auditor's Report Thereon

The Company's Board of Directors is responsible for the other information. The

otherinformation comprises the information included in the Director's Report, but
does not includ"e the Standalone Ind. AS Financial Statements and our auditor's

report thereon.

Our opinion on the standalone Ind AS Financial Statements does not cover the

other information and we do not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the standalone Ind AS Financial Statements, our

responsibilityis to read the other information and, in doing so, consider whether

the other information is materially inconsistent with the standalone ind AS

Financial Statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears



to be materially rnisstated. if, based on the work wehave performed, we conclud.e

that there is a rnaterial misstatement of this other information; we are required to
report that fact" We have nothing to report in this regard.

Management's Responsibility and Those Charged with Governance for the
Standalone Ind AS Financial Statements

The Company's Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in Section

134(5) of theCompanies Act,2O13 ("the Act") with respect to the preparation of these

Ind AS financial statements that glves a true and fair view of the financial position,

financial performance lncluding other comprehensive income, cash flows and

changes in equity of the Company in accordance with the accounting principles

generally accepted in India, including the Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS)

specified under Section 133 of the Act read with the Companies(Indian Accounting

Standards) Rules,2O 15,as amended .

This responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in
accordance withthe provisions of the Act for safeguarding the assets of the Company

and for preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection and

application of appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and estimates that
are reasonable and prudent; and design, implementation and maintenance of

adequate internal financial controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the

accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and

presentation of the Ind AS financial statements that give a true and fair view andare

free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

in preparing the standalone Ind AS Financial Statements, management is

responsible for assessing the Company's ability to continue as a going concern,

disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going

concern basis of accounting unless marlagement either intends to liquidate the

Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

The Board of Directors is also responsible for overseeing the Company's financial
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reporting process.



Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Standalone Ind AS Financial
Statements

Our objectives ard to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the standalone

ind AS Financial Statements as a whole are free from material misstatement,

whether due to fraud or error, ald to issue an auditor's report that includes our

opinion. Reasonable assurance is a highlevel of assurance, but is not a guarantee

that an audit conducted in accordance with SAs will a-1ways detect a material

misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are

considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they eould reasonably be

expected to influence th'e economic decisions of users taken on the basis of this
standalone IndAS Financial Statements. As part of an audit in accordance with SAs,

we exercise professionaljudgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout

the audit. We also:

. Identify and assess the risks of materia-l misstatement of the standalone Ind

ASFinancial Statements, whether due to fraud or error, design and perform

audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is

suffi.cient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not

detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one

resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional

omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

o Obtain an understartding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to

design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under

Section 143(3)(i) of the Act, we are also responsible for expressing our

opinion on whether the Company has adequate internal flnancial controls

with reference to financial statements in place andthe operating effectiveness

of such controls.

o Evaluate the

reasonableness

management,

appropriateness of accounting policies used and the

of accounting estimates and related disclosures made by



I Conclude on the appropriateness of management's use of the going

concern "oasis of, accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained,

wLiether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that
may cast sigtrificant doubt on the Company's abilitv to continue as a going

concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists,we are required to

draw attention in our auditor's report to the reiated disciosures in the

standalone Ind AS Financial StatemenLs or, if such disclosures are

inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit

evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor's rcport. However, future

events or conditiohs may cause the Company to cease to continue as a going

concern.

o EvaLuate the overa-11 presentation, structure and content of the standalone

Ind AS Financial Statements, including the disclosures, and rvhether the

standalone Ind AS Financial Statements represent the underlying

transactions and events in a manner thatachierres fair presentation.

Materiality is the magnitude of misstatcmcnts in thc standzrlone Ind AS financial

statements that, individuaLly or in aggregate, makes it probable that the economic

decisions of a reasonably knowledgeable user of the financial statements may be

influenced. We consider quantitative materiality and qualitative factors in (i)

planning the scope of our audit work and in evaluating the results of our work; arnd

(ii) to evaluate the effect of any identilied misstatements in the financial statements.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, alnong other

matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings,

including any significantdeficiencies in internal control that we identifv during our

audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have

complied with relevant ethical requirements rega-rding independence, and to
communicate with them all relationships and other matters that may reasonably be

thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.



Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirernents

1. As required b1'the Companies (Auditr-rr's Repr:rti Orcler" 2A2A ("the Order"),

issued by the Central Government of india in terms of sui:r-section {111 of

sectiorr 143 of the Act, we give in ihe "Annexure A" a statement on the

matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4of the Order to the extent applicable"

2. As required by section 143 (3) olthe Act, rve rcport that:

(a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explaneLtions which to

the best ofour knowledge and belief were necessary for the purpose of our

audit;

(b) In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept

by the Company so far as it appears from our examination of those books;

(c) The Standalone Ind AS Balance Sheet, the Standalone Statement of Proiit

and Loss including Other Comprehensive Income, the Statement of Cash

Flows and the Statement of Changes in Equity dealt with by this report are

in agreement with the books of account;"

(d) In our opinion, the er-foresaid Standalone ind AS financial statements comply

with the Indian Accounting Standards specified under section 133 of the

Act, read with the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules,2015, as

amended;

(e) On the basis of written representations received from the Directors as on

31.t March,2023 taken on record by the Board of Directors, none of the

Directors is disqualified as on 31.t March, 2023 from being appointed as a

director in terms of Section L64 (2) of thc Act;

(f) With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over financial

reportingof the Company and the operating effectiveness of such controls,

refer to our separateReport in (Annexure B"; and



(g) With respect to the rnatter tc be includeci in the Auditor's Report under section

i97(16} cf the Act, as amended. the company is a prlvate ccmpany and hence

ihe provrsions of section tr97 of the Companies Act, 2013 do not apply to
cornpanv.

(h) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor's Report in

accordancewith Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit ernd Auditors) Ruies,2074,

in our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the

explanations given to us:

i. The Company does not have any pending litigations which rvould

impact its financial position;

ii. The Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative

contractsfor which there were any material foreseeable losses;

There has been no such sum which needs to be transferred to the

Investor Education and Protection Fund by the Company.

a) The management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge

and belief, other than as disclosed in the notes to the accounts, no

funds have been advanced or loaned or invested (either lrom borrowed

funds or share premium or arry other sources or kind of funds) by the

company to or in any other person or entity, including foreign entities

("Intermediaries"), with the understanding, whether recorded in writing

or otherwise, that the Intermediary shall, whether, directly or indirectly

lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner

whatsoever by or on behalf of the company ("Ultimate Beneficiaries") or

provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate

Beneficiaries.

b) The management has represented, that, to the best of its knowledge

and belief, other than as discloscd in Lhe notes to the accounts, no

funds have been received by the comparry from any person or entity,

ll1.

iv.

including foreign entilj nding Parties"), with the understalding,



V.

vl.

whether recorded in writing or otheruvise, that the comp€rnv shali,

whether, directl-v or indirectly, lend or invest in other persons or entities

identified in any rnanner u,,harsoever b-v cr on beirdf r:f the F-unding

Party ("ultimate Eeneficraries"J or provide an.v guaraxtee, security or the

like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries.

c) Based on the audit procedures that have been considered reasonable

and appropriate in the circumstances, nothing has come to our

attention that has caused Lls to believe that the representations under

sub-clause (i) and (ii) of Rule I 1 (e) as provided under (a) and (b) above,

contain any material misstatement.

The Company has declarcd the interim dividend during the year and

until the date of this audit report is in accordance with the section 123

of the Act.

Proviso to Rule 3(1) of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2Ol4 for
maintaining books of aicount using accounting software rvhich has a
feature of recording audit trail (edit 1og) facility is applicable to the

Company rv.e.f. April 1, 2023, and accordingly, reporting under Ruie

11(g) of Companies (Audit and Auditors) Ru1es, 2Ol4 is not applicable

for the financial year ended March 37,2023.

For Panda Swain & Associates

Chartered Accountants

ICAI FRN NA: 3327248

24, C R Avenue,

Kolkata - 7OO O72

This is the 20th Day of September 2023.

{*
Abhimanyu Swain

Partner

Membership No. 3LLOSO
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ANNEXURE'A' TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

The Annexure referred to in our Independent Auditor's Report to the members of

INDUS NET TECHNOLOGIES PRwATE LIMITED ("the Company") on the

Standalone Ind AS financial statements for the year ended on 3lst March 2023.We

report that:

In respect of the Company's Property, Plant and trquipment and intangible

assets;

(a) (A) The company has maintained proper records showing fu11

particulars, including quantitative details and situation of Property, Plant

and Equipment and relevant details of right-of-use assets.

(B) The Company has maintained proper records showing fu1l

particulars of intarrgibles assets.

(b) The Company has a regular prograrn of verification to cover all the items

of Property, Plant and Equipment in a phased manner which, in our

opinion, is reasonable having regard to the size of the Company and the

nature of its assets. According to the information and explanations girren

to Lrs, no material discrepancies were noticed on such verification.

(c) According to the information and explanations given to us, there are no

immovable properties held in the name of the Company, and accordingly,

the requirements under paragraph 3(i)(c) of the Order are not applicable

to the Company.

(d) The Company has not revaLued any of its property, plant and equipment

(including Right of Use assets) and intangible assets during the year

ended 31"t March,2023. Accordingly, the requirements under paragraph

3(i)(d) of the Order are not applicable to the Company.



(el There were no proceedings initlatect or arc pending against the companv
for holding any benami property uncier the Benami Transactions
(Prohibition) Act, 19BB (45 of 19BB) and rules made thercunder.

ii) As the Company is in the business of Information Technology enabled services,

the requirements of physical verification of stock or maintenance of inventory
records in our opinion are not applicable. As informed to us, the Company has

neither entered into aly tralsaction related to trading activities nor has any
opening or closing inventory items during the financial year. Hence, clause (ii)(a)

to (ii)(b) of paragraph 3 of the order is not applicable to the company

iii) In respect of Investments, Loans, Guarerntee and Se curity:
a) According to the information explanation prorrided to us, the Company has made

investments in, provided loans or provided advances in the nature of 1oans, or
given guarantee, or prorrided security to any other entity.

The details of such loans or advances and guarantees or security to subsidiary,
joint ventures and associates are as follows:

Amount in t Thousands

Guarantees

Aggregate amount

granted/provided

during the year

-Subsidiary

- Associates

144.250

769.500

Ba-lance

Outstanding as at

balance sheet

date in respect of

above cases

- Subsidiary

- Associates

2,339.767

73,423.082

le
ZI<I
?\,

Particulars Security Loans Advances

Ni1

Nil

Nil

Nil

Ni1

Nil

Nil

N9.m^
Ni1

Nil

Nit

NIil



fil According to the information and explanations given to us ald baseri on the

ai.ldit proceclures performeri b1' 'r-rs, \&,e are of' the opinion that the t-erms and

cclnditions in reiation to investments made , guarantees providerl, securities given

a:rd i' or grant of all loans ancl a.dvances in the natui'e of loans anci guarantees

are not prejudicial to the interest of the Compan1,.

c) In case of the loans and adrrances in the nature of loan, schcdule of repayment of
principal and payment of interest han,e been stipulated and the borrowers have

been regular in the payment of the principal and interest except for the folior,ving

loans:

Name of the entity Overdue (Amount in { Thousands)

Algo Energrtech Ventures Pvt. Ltd 3,932.O82

d) There are no amounts overdue for more

granted to Company I Firrnl LLP/ Other

than ninety days in respect of the loan

Parties except for the follorving loans:

The company has taken reasonable steps for recovery of overdues, This matter
has been disclosed in note 46 lo the financial statements.

e) According to the information explanation provided to us, the loan or advance in
the nature of loan glanted has not fa-llen due during the year. Hence, the
requirements under paragraph 3(iii) (e) of the Order are not applicable to the
Company.

According to the information explanation provided to us, the Company has not
any granted loans arrd I or advances in the nature of loans either repayable on

demand or without specifying arry terms or period of repayment. Hence, the

requirements under paragraph 3(iiil(fl of the Order are not applicable to the

(Amount in { Thousands)

Name of the entity Interest Overdue Total Overdue

Algo Energrtech Ventures

Pvt. Ltd

3,932.O82 3,932.O82

Company.



ivl In our opinion ancl according ro the infbrrnation and explanations given to

us" provisions of section tr85 and i86 of the companies Act. 2013 in
r:espect of loans to directors incir-lding entities in which they are interested

arrd in respect of loans and advances given, investments made anc1.

gua-rantees, and securities given have been complieci with by the Company.

According to the information and explanations given to Lls, the compzLny

has not accepted any deposit from the public nor accepted any amounts

which are deemed to be deposits during the year within the meaning of

Sections 73 and 76 of the CompaniesAct, 2013. Hence the requirement to

report on clause (v) of the Order is not applicable tothe company.

According to the information and explanations provided by the management, the

Company is not engaged in production, processing, matnufacturing or mining

activities. Hence the provision of section 148(1) does not apply to the Company

and in our opinion no comment on maintenance of cost records under section

148(1) is required.

According to the information and explanations given to us, in respect of statutory
dues:

(a) The Company has generally been regular in depositing undisputeci

statutory dues, including Provident Fund, Employees' State Insurance,

Income Tax, Goods and Service Tax, Cess ernd other material statutory

dues applicable to it with the appropriate ar-rthorities and no undisputed

dues are in arrears as at March 31,2023 for a period of more than six

months from the date they became payable.

(b) According to the information and explanations given to us, there are

dues referred to in sub-clause (a) which has not been deposited

account of any dispute.

viii) According to the information and explanations given to us, there were no

transactions relating to previously unrecorded income that have been

surrendered or disclose mcome during the year in the tax assessments

v)

vi)

vii)

no

on

6t,G&
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under the Income of 1961).



ix)

x)

ia) Iir oul opinion and according to the information and exptranations given to

'Lls i:;y- therna,nagernent. tlee Compan;v has not defaulted in the repayment

of dues to banks, financial institutions and go\rernnrent duriug the year.

Flence, reportrng under ciause (Lxj(a) of the Order is not applicable.

1b) The Company has not been dccizrred r,r,i1fui defauiter b5. any bank or

financial institution or other lender;

(c) According to the information ald explanation given to us ald on the

basis of our examination of the records of the company, the CorrrpzLny

has utilized the loan amount taken during the year for intended purpose

and there is no unutilized term loan at the beginning of the year.

(d) On an overali examination of the financial statements of the Company,

Company did not raise any funds during the year hence. the requirement to

report on clause (r-x)(d) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

(e) According to the information and explzrnations given to us and on an

overall examination of the financial statements of the Compaly, we

report that the company has not taken any funds from any entity or

person on account of or to meet the obligations of its subsidiary, as

defined under the Act.

(0 The company has not raised loans during the year on the pledge of

securities held ir its Sr-rbsidiaries or associate companies. Hence, the

requirement to report on clause (Lx)(f) of the Order is not applicable to the

Company.

In respect of fund raised:

(a) According to the information and erplanations given by the

management, the Company has not raised moneys by way of initial public

offer or further public offer (including debt instruments) during the year

ffi-"\
?\FRN-332i24E/?w

and hence reporting (x)(a)of the Order is not applicable.



xi)

(b) During the year. the Companv iras not made any preferential allotment

or private placement of shares or convertible debentures (fuily or partly or

optionailyl and hence reporting under ctrause (x)(bl of the Order is not

applicable.

In respect of fraud:

(a) Based on examination of the books and records of the Compeuty and

according to the information and explanations given to us, considering

the principles of materiality as outlined in the Standards on Ar-rditing, we

report that no fraud by theCompany or on the Company has been noticed

or reported dui"ing the course of theaudit.

(b) We have not come across of any instance of fraud by the Company or on the

Company during the course of audit of the standalone financial statement for

the year ended March 31,2023. Further, During the year, no report under

sub-section (72) of section 143 of the Companies Act,20 13 has been filed by

by us in Form ADT - 4 as prescribed under Rule 13 of Companies (Audit and

Auditors) Rules, 2014 r,vith the Central Government.

(c) To the best of our knor.vledge and according to the information and

explanations given to uS, there were no r,vhistle-blorver complaints

received during the year by the company.

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to

us, the Company is not a Nidhi Company and hence reporting under clause

3 (xii) (a) to (c) ofthe Order is not applicable to the Company.

xiii) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to

us, the Company is in compliance with Section 777 and 1BB of the Companies

Act,2O13 where applicable, for all transactions with the related parties and

the details of related. party transactions have been disclosed in the financial

statements in note 31 as required by the applicable Indian accounting

standards (Ind AS) 24, Related Party Disclosures specified in Companies

(Indian Accounting Standards)

xii)

./\
\=
t?
il
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of the Act.

15 as prescribed under Section 133

t



xir,) Our opinion and based on our examination. the Company cloes not require

cornpi.v'uritir pravision of section 138 of the Act. Hence, the provisions stated
paragraph 3{xiv} ial to (bi of the crder are not app}icable to the company.

According to the information and explanations girren to us and based on our

examination of the records of the Company, the Company has not entered

into any non- cash transactions with its directors or persons connected with

them as referred to in Section 192 of Companies Act, 2013. Accordingly,

paragraph 3 (xv) of the Order is notapplicable.

xvi) In respect of Reporting on Registration u/s 45-lA of RBI Act:

(a) According to the information and explanations gir,,en to us, the provisions

of Section 45-IA of the Reserwe Bank of India Acl, 7934 are not applicable

to the Company.

(b) The Company is not engaged in any Non-Banking Financial or Housing

Finance activities. Accordingly, the requirement to report on clause

3(xvi)(b) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

(c) The Company is not a Core Investment Company as definecl in the

regulations madeby Reserve Bank of India. Accordingly, the requirement

to report on clause3(xvi)(c) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

(d) The Group has two CICs as part of the Group.

xvii) The Based on the overall rerriew of standalone fineincial statements, the

Company has not incurred cash losses in the current financial year and in the

immediately preceding financial year. Hence, the provisions stated in paragraph

clause 3 (xvii) of the Order are not applicable to the Company.

xviii) There has

Accordingly,

Company.

to

in

xv)

been no resignation of the statutory auditors during the year.

reporting under clause 3(xviii) of the Order is not applicable to the

ffi



xixl Cn ttre'basrs of the financial ratios dlsciosed in note 49 to the financial

statements, ageing and expectecl ciates of realizi,rtion of financial assets and

payment of financia-l liabiiities, other information accomparving the

fina:rcial statements, our knorvledge of the Board of Directors :rnd

rlanagement pians. r,\,/e arc' r-if the opinion that no material i-rncertainty exists

as on the date of the audit report and that company is capable of meeting its

liabilities existing at the date of balernce sheet as and when they fall due

within a period of one year from the balance sheet date;

xx) According to the'information and explanations given to us, the provisions of
section 135 of the Act are applicable to the Company. The Company has made

the required contributions during the year and there are no unspent amounts

which are required to be transferred to the special account as on the date of our

audit report. Accordingly, the provisions of paragraph (xx)(a) to (b) of the Order

are not applicable to the Company. This matter has been disclosed in note 37 to

the financial statements.

The reporting under clause 3(xxil of the Order is not applicable in respect of

audit of stand"alone financial statements. Accorclingly, no comment in
respect of the said clause has been included in the report.

xxi)

24, C R Avenue,

Kolkata - 7OO O72

This is the 20th Day of September 2023.

For Panda Swain & Associates

Chartered Accountants

ICAI FRN NOz 332724D

>/*-il.U u/17-
Abhimanyu Swain

Partner

Membership No.311O5O
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Annexure B to the Independent Auditors' Report

Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of
Section 143 of the Companies Act, 2O13 (3'the Act")

We have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of INDUS NET

TECHNOLOGIES PRTVATE LIMITED ("the Company") to the extent records available

with us in conjunction with our auditof the Standalone ind AS financial statements of

the company as of and for the year ended 31"t March,2023.

Management's Respons'ibility for Internal Financial Controls

The Company's management is responsible for estabiishing and maintaining internal

financial controls based on the internal control over linancial reporting criteria

established by the Companyconsidering the essential components of internal control

stated in the Guidance note on Audit ofinternal Financia-l Controls over Financial

Reporting issued by.the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India ('ICAI). These

responsibilities include the design, irnplementation and maintenance of adequate

internal financial controls that were operating eflectively for ensuring the orderly and

efficient conduct of its business, including adherence to company's policies, the

safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the

accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the timely preparation of

reliable financial information, as required under the Companies Act, 2013.

Auditors' Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial

controls over financial reporting based on our audit. We conducted our audit in

accordance with the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls over

Financial Reporting (the "Guidance Note") and the Standards on Auditing, issued by

ICAI arid deemed to be prescribed under section 143(10) of the Act, to the extent

applicable to al audit of internal financial controls, both applicable to an audit of

Internal Financial Controls and, both issued by the Institute of CharteredAccountants

of India. Those Standards and the Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical

requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about

whether adequate internal financ! over linancial reporting r,vas established

effcctively in all material respects.and maintained andif such

-'--;-/
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Our audit involves performing procedures to obta,in audit evidence about the

adequacy of the lnternai {inalcial controis s)Istem over .finalcial reporting and their
cperating effectiveness. Cur audit ol internal financiai controls over financial
reporting included obtaining an understanding of interna-l financial controls over

financial reporting, assessing the risk that a materia-i weaknessexists, and testing and

evaluating the design and operating elfectivencss of internal control b,ased on the

assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgment. incluriing
the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the ind AS financia-l

statements, whether dueto fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we

provide a basis for our audit opinion

system over financial reporting.

have obtained is suflicient and appropriate to

on the Company's internal financial controls

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting

A company's internal financial control over financial reporting is a process designed

to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of finalcial reporting and

the preparation of Ind AS frnancial statements for externa-1 purposes in accordance

with generally accepted accountingprinciples,

A company's internal financial control over financial reporting includes those policies

and procedures that:- '

(1) Pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and

fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company;

(2) Provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to

permit preparation of Ind AS financial statements ir-r. accordance with generally

accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the compaly

are being made only in accordance rvith authorizations of management and directors

of the company; and

(3) Provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of

unauthorized. acquisition, use, or disp6ti'Hbn of the company's assets that could have

a material effect on the Ind AS financial statements.

D-y
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Inherent timitations of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial

reporting, inctruding the possibility of collusion or improper management override of

controls, material misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be

detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the internal financial controls over

financial reporting to future periods are subjectto the risk that the internal financial

control over financial reporting may become inadequate because of changes in

conditions, or that the degree of compiiance with the policies or procedures may

deteriorate.

Opinlon

In our opinion, the Company has, in all materia-l respects, an adequate internal

Iinancial controlssystem over financial reporting and such internal financial controls

over financial reporting wereoperating effectively as at 31"t March 2023, based on the

internal control over financia-l reporting criteria established by the Company

considering the essential components of internal control stated in Guidance Note on

Audit of Internal Financial Control over Financial.Reporting issued by the ICAI.

24, C R Avenue

Kolkata - 7OO O72

This is the 20th Day of September 2023.

For Panda Swain & Associates

Chartered Accountants

ICAI FRN NO: 3327248

"/>;o-U u_4-
Abhimahyu Swain

Partner

Membership No. 311050

UDIN ror this document is >33 t I o5o Bq UF%OB VL/



IITDUS I{ET TECHNOLOGIES PRWATE LIMIf_
(Company ldentlflcatlon ilo: U?21OOWB2OO7PTCI ISEZS!

Balanco Sheet as at 31st March, 2O23

_ {Amount ln { Thousands, except otherwlse stated

. LIIL

Particulars l{ote
no.

31st March,
2A2A

31st lllarch"
2022 1st Aprtl, 2O21

Asseta
l{on-current assets
a) Property, plant and equipment
b) Intangible assets
c) Financial assets

i)Investments
ii) Loans
iii) Other Financial assets

d) Deferred tax assets
e) Other non-current assets

Total I[on - Current Assets (I)
Current assots
a) Financial assets

i) Investments
ii)'l'rade receivables
iii) Cash and Cash equivalelts
iv) Bank balances other than (iii) above
v) Loans

b) Current tax assets (net)
c) Other current assets

Total Current Assets (IIf

Total Assets (I + lI]

2
J

4
5

6
7
8

4a
9
10
11

5a
t2
8a

23,196.76
237 "tO

5,26,006.66
15,762.85
8,324.95
3,313.39

63 rS4 rR

6,AOA.77
48.56

7,85,448.22
24,849.tO

6,474.22
1,449.90

4,2t4.75
133.46

5,03,1s9.33
13,900.96
6,397.63
1,930. 1 1

6,40.09s.99 2.25.O74.77 s,29,736.26

1,s8,965.22
82,238.58
84,472.39

7,451.70
s5,010.93

4 50q .ql

86,832.58
46,991.83
64,581.44

4,19,178.O9
12,1s8.40

7,88,929.41
3,380.85

70,041.85
77,883.9t
93,087.4t
2t,554.34

2,704.24
1,25,800.91

888.57
3.92.648,33 4.22.Os2.s9 3,91,361.23

10.32.744.32 10.47.131.36 9,2L,O97.46

liquity and Llabilitles
Equity
a) Equity Share capital
b) Other equity

I[on-current ltabtltties
a) Financial liabilities

i) Borrowings
b) Provisions

Total Non
Current ltabilltles
a) Financial liabitties

i) Borrowings
ii) Trade payables

Total F,qutty (IIII

- Current Ltabtlitles (tVf

- total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small
enterprises

- total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro
enterprises and small enterprises
iii) Other financial liabilities

b) Other current liabilties
c) Provisions
d) Other Current Tax Liability

Total Current Liablltttes lVt

Total Equlty and liabllltles (UI + IV + Vl

Significant Accounting Policies

13
14

15

16

15a

t7

18

19

l6a
20

1

96,734.40
8.17.335.89

2,418.36
8,2s,502.83

2,418.36
7,79,144.93

9,14,070.39 4.27.92t,L9 7,2t,563.29

21 q6.1 00 2s,816.;o
38,997.67
)3 495 15

2L,96t.90 23.816.90 62,492.92

15,C00.00

74.O2

3,t12.41
40,847.66

154.04
37.583.90

4,146.23
23,963.21

7,OO4.24
149.72

1,66.t29.78

1,786.82
16,t29.4s

746.42
.18.978.56

96.7 i2.O2 1,9s,393.19 L.37.O41.2s

LO,32,744.32 ru,47,1i,1.36 9,2L,O97,46

l'he accompanying notes form an integral part ofthe Financial Statements

t6s

Membership No.: 31 1050
.olace: Kolkata
Daied : September, 20, 2023

UDIN:

For and on behalf of the Board Of Directors of

r ${ DU s il ET T Ec Hirr 0 L0 u r E s pu T. u r 
-' "inlr i,3"ffi i':I-tllltr\S

31-*rr{''k$.. \(aur.L.*.$.ta- 
nr'\

- 
Abhishek Rungta Raghunath Prasad Runsta

lndus NfiEmm#Xgs Pvt' Lrd' 1;1'o1' n-',;,,:i*

A..;*r* &r".",. .

^ ^ 
j-ll1\tdil0Gfr-ry secrutary

uompany secretary
Membership No: F12813
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INDUS NE-T TECHNOI,OGIESI PRIITATE LIMITED
(Coapany ldentificatlon No: U72 IOOWB2OOTPTC1 158751

Statement of Prollt & Loss for the year ended 31st March, 2O2B
ln otherwise stated

Particulars Notes

For the Year
endlng on
3lst lllarch

2023

For the Year
endlng on

31st March
2022

T

II

UI

rv
v
VI

\rII
vIIr

IX

x

llncome
lR"rr"rrr. from operations
lother Income

I Total lncome
I

Experrses
Employee benefit expenses
Finance costs
lDepreciation and arirortisation expense
Other expenses

Total expenses

Proftt/{loss} before exceptional ltems and tax
(r-il1
Exceptional items:
Proltt/(lossl before tax (III-IV)
Tax expense:
(1) Current tax
(2) Income Tax.for Earlier Years
(3) Deferred tax charge/(Credit)
Total Tax Enpenses
Prollt/(loss) for the Year (V-VI)
Other Comprehensive Income
Items that will not be classified to statement of
Profit or Loss
i)Remeasuremeats of the delined benelit
tiabilities/ (asset)
ii) Income Tax on above item

2r
22

23
24
25
26

28

8,39,7L2.49
38,844.52

6,84,67L.49
39,932.91

8.78.557.O1 7.24.60,4.40

5,48,511.35
319.58

13,713.90
L,75,O47.56

4,09,582.95
3,706.49
1,938.46

L,29,943.O7

7.57.592.40 5,45,17O.96

1,40,964.eL

37,583.90
3,586.06
(2,993.00)

1,4o,964.6L

t,7g,$3.;4

47,LsL.22
to2.66
480.21

1,79,433.44

38.176.96 47,734.09
L,02,787.65 1,31,699.35

(4,487.88],

t,t29.5L

(5,373.96)

Total Comprehensive fneqme for tbe Year
(vlr+vlu)
Earnings per equity share
Basic (in {)
Diluted (in t)

1,06,L46,O2 1,37,073.31

t2.t5
12.15

544.58
544.58

qnificant Accounting Policies
Ihe accompanying notes form an integral part of the Financial Statemerrts

Abhtshek Runsta
whole Time ffioI

As per our report ofeven date attached.

For Panda For and on behalf of the Board Of Directors of

Firm*eeistraffit SHffilffu'n'""*'ffi'o*ry
Chartered

Partner
Membership No.i
Place: Kolkata
Dated : September, 20, 2023

UDIN:

Raghunath Prasad Rungta
Whole Time Director

pyt. i-td. DIN: 01235e21
I nd us r,i'"TiBLlftffimsi 

ut

8;,,*
_ Shikha Sup,4froarv )e(:iri3! ?

Company Secret'aiy
Membership No: F12813

Dkect,og
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Partlculars O1-Apr-21 3L-Map22
Indlan GAAP Adiustments Ind AS Indlan GAAP AdJustments Ind AS

lnlil"i.""r,, "'..,'
| { Property, plant and equipment
I bi Other Intangible assets
I c) Financial assets
I il Investments
I ..._

| 11) Loans
I iii)'Other Fianacial assets
I d; oeferred tax assets
I e) Other non-cument assets

I
lCurrent assets
I a) Financial assets| ' 

rr ir*""*""i"--
I ii) Trade receivables 

]

I iiit Cash and Cash equivalent]
I iv)'Other bank balances I

I v) Loans 
I

I b) Current tax assets (net) |

I c) Other current assets I

I to,.t *""r= I

l*"n" and Ltabiltttes IEquity I

a) Equity Share capital I
b) other equity 

I
Non-current llabilttles I

a) Financial liabilities I
i) Borrowings 

I
b) Provisions 

I
Current liabiltties 

I
a) Financial liabilities I

i) Borrowings 
I

ii) Trade payabtes 
I

iii) Other financial liabilities I
b) Other current liabilities I
c) Provisions 

I
d)Other Current Taxlaibility I

Total Equltv and llabllltles I

2

J

4
4a
5
2

3
7
8
9
4
10
6

l1
t2

13
15

13
l4
t4
17
15

15a

4,2t4.75
tr33.46

5,0s,1s9.33
13,900.96
6,397.63
1,930. 1 I

4,214.75
133.46

5,03,159.33
13,900.96
6,397.63
1,930. I 1

6,808.75
48.56

1,a5,726.57
24,849.70
6,474.22
1,449.90

(278.3O)

6,80A.77
48.56

1,A5,448.22
24,849.10
6,474.22
7,449.90

6,29,796,24 5.29.736.25 2,25.357.O4 127a301 2,25,O78.77

54,437.31
77,883.91
93,087.41
21,554.34
2,104.24

1,25,800.91
888.57

15,604.54 70,041.85
77,883.91
93,087.41
21,554.34
2,104.24

1,2s,800.91
888.57

6s,992.30
46,991.83
64,581.44

4,19,178.O9
12,158.40

1,88,929.41
3.380.as

20,840.28 86,832.58
46,991.83
64,581.44

4,19,178.O9
12,158.40

t,88,929.41
3.380.8s

3.75.756.69 15,604.54 3,91,36 i.23 8,01,2t2.32 20,840.28 8.22.O52.s9
9,O ,492.92 15,604.54 9.21.O97,46 10.26.569.3 20,561.98 1O,47,131.36

2,418.36
7,26,027.90 (6 RR O7\

2,418.36
7,79.144.93

2,4t8.36
4,77,5t7 .79 7.985.O4

2,418.36
8.25.502.83

7,2A.446." rc,4a2.971 r1,563.29 8,19,936.15 7.985.04 4,27.92t.L9

38,997.67
1,OO7.74 22.4a7.51

38,997.67
23,495.25 tr,243.34 72,573.64 23,816.90

40,oo5.41 22,4A7.sL 62,492.92 tL,243.34 12,573.t 23,816.90

t,786.82
16,t29.45

146.42
,18,978.56

1,786.82
16,129.45

146.42
1.18.978.s6

4,146.23
23,963.21

1,O04.24
146.42

1.66.129.7A
3.30

4,746.23
23,963.21

1,OO4.24
749.72

1,66,129.78
t,37,O4L.25 1,37.O41.25 1,95.389.88 3.SO 1,95,393.19
9,O5.492.92 1s,604.54 9,2L,O97.46 10,26,569.3E 20.s61. 10.47.1S1.36

,

IilDUS ITET TECHI{OLOGIES PRTVATE LIMITED

Notes to the financrar statements r",,["#fllffTf;:i? Noz'T2,oontB2oozPncllss7st

IIIIDUS I{ET TECHiIOTOGIES PVT. LI0.w
Dkerr.x

lndus NEt Technologies Pvt' Ltd'

I;.n* km;secretary

t

'-H*S5fln1louflfl,"0
Dkectot



IITDUS NET TECHNOII)GIErS PRIVATE LIMITED
lCompany ldentiflcatlon No: U721OOTIB2OO7PTC1 158751

Statement of Chaages tn F,qutty for the year ended Olst ilarch 2O2G

lL Equtty Share Capltal (Anount in t Thousaads, eacept otherwlse statedt

T. tT0

Partlculars Number (ln
Thousandl

Amount (In
thousandl

Balance at lst Aprtl 2O21
Changes in Equity Share Capital During the financial year,
Balance at 31st Match 2o22
lssuance of Share Capital (Refer Note no 13)
Balance et glst ilarch 2O23

241.436

24t.436
9,131.604

9-S'73-44r)

2,4L8.36

2,418,36
94,316.O4

q6-'744-aO

lEquity shares ofRs. 10/- each

B. Other Egutty

issued, subscribed and fully paid)

Particulars Securltles
Premlum

Capltal
Reseve

General
Reservo

Retalned
Earnings

Other
Comprehensiv

e Income

Total Other
Equlty

Balance at 1st April 2021 IGAAP
fV gain/(loss) on investments
?rovision for Gratuitv

t7,607.O7 9,654.65 6,94,766.t8
15,604.54
22,4A7.51

7,26,027.90
15,604.54
224A7 51

Balaace at 1st Aprll 2021 IGAAP

Profit/(Loss) for the year
Other Comprehensive Income

Transferred from retained Earning
T/fto General Reserve

Dividend
l)enreciafion AdirrsfmFnf

t7,607 .O7 9,654.65

2,00,000.00

6,91,883.21

1,31,699.35

(2,00,00o.00)

(31,215.17)
4QO 76

5,373.96

7,19,144.93

1,31,699.3s

5,373.96

(2,00,000.00)

2,00,000.00

(31,215.17)
499.76

Balance at 31st Matco.2o22 L7,607.O7 9,654.65 2,OO,OOO.OO s,92,867.L5 5,374.96 8,25,5O2.83

Balance at 1st Aprll 2O22 L7,607.O7 9,654.65 2,OO,OOO.OO 5,92,867,L5 5,373.96 8,25,502.83
Prolit/(Loss) for the year
3ther Comprehensive Income

Utilization for Bonus

Dividend
(94,316.O41

t,02,787.65

ttg,ggo.szt

3,358.37

t,o2,747.65
3,358.37

(94,3t6.O41

fi q qq6 qrt
Balance at 31st March 2023 L7,607.O7 9,654.65 1,O5,683.96 6,75,657.88 4,732.33 8,17,335.89

The dercdptlon, nature aad purpore of each rerenre wlthln re:erve & rurplur are ac follow:
(al Securtty Premlun

Securities premium reserve is used to record the premium on issue of shares. The reserve can be utilized only for limited purpnss such as
issuance of bonus strares in accordance with tl:e provisions of tl:e Companies Act, 20 13.

lbl Capttd Re;ere
Capital Reseroe represnts reserfe created on acqusition of entire business of Customer First Infonet Private Limited

lcl Genenl Recere
General Reswe is created out of retained eranings and can be utilized for distribution of dividend or issuance of bonus strares etc.

(df Retetned Eandng3

Retained Eming reprewats total of all profits retained since Company's inception. Retained eanings are uedited with cu[ent yeil prolits,
reduced by losses, if any, dividend payouts, trmsfers to General resre or any such other appropriations to specific resewes.

As Der our reDort of evetr date attached.

ro, p.oa. 
"@; 

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of

3*T:""1"ffifffifif** "Y&\," *rnrre f,rEr rEFsNnr nn''R pur i?ff1ilnrcmTE[f,l[4tffifr*$ffi l6
E*

v
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Abhishek Rungta Raghunath Prasad Rungta
hnfaifffiGtrlilF.tnr Whnla Tima Dirpntr4Partner

Membership No

Place: Kolkata
Dated : Septeml

UDIN:

\SoEcqZ
DIN: O1235921.: 31105O

rcr,20,2023

lndus ue6rdthftffi$iBs pvt. Ltd.
At^r[t^f I,^4{^ .

Shikha Surana
Company Secretary
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II{DUS NET TECHNOIPGIESI PRIVATE LIMITED
(Company Identlllcatlon lto: U72 1OOWB2OO?PTC1 158751

(Aoount ln t Thousands, except otherctlse stated)
Cash Flow Statement for the year ended 3l March 2O23

Fartlculars 31 March 2023 3l March 2022

A. Cash Flow from Operatlng Actlvtttes

Net Profit before Tax & Exceptional Items

Add: Adjustments for Non Cash & Non Operating Items
Depreciation
Interest income
FV gain on investments
Impairment of Investment
FV loss of Investment
Loss on Redemption of Mutual fund
Gratuity Expenses
Sundry Balance Written Off
Profit on Sale of Fixed asset
Allowance for credit losses
Loss on sale of investment
Dividend Income
Interest Expenses

1,40,964.6t

13,713.90
(28,226.28],

(3,774.831
500.00

t,473.4L
344.34

2,636.44
5,O22.+6

(54s.80)
539.97

(1,735.96)
23.LL

L,79,433.44

1,938.46
(26,945.LO1

(5,358.12)

400.68

5,698.98

2.20
{r,Lr7.o7)
2.468.54

Operating Proflt before Slorking Capital Chanqes 1,3O,935.35 1,56,522.0O

Adjusted For
(Increase)/Decrease in Trade receivable
(Increase)/Decrease in Short term loan and advance
(Decrease )/Increase' in Trade Payable
(Increase )/Decrease in Other current aseets
(Decrease )/Increase in Borrowings
(Decrease )/Increase in Other financial Liabiliti/
(Decrease l/Increase in Other current liabilities

(36,O74.9O1
4,706.70
(1,019.80)
(1,128.66)
15,000.00
(3,rt2.47)
ft.o04.24\

30,892.08
(10,054.16)

2,359.4L
(2,492.28],

7,833.76
L,OO4.24

Cash generated from Operation 1.O8.301.98 1.86.065.06

Less: Direct Tax Paid t40,001.04) 63,23t.171
Net Cash Flow from OperatlnE Actlvltles before Exceptiona. 68,300.94 1.22.833.89
Less: Exceptional Items
Net Cash flow from Operating Activities 68.300.94 1.22.833.89

B. Cash Flow from Investlag Actlvltles

Purchase of Propert5r, Plant & Equipment
Sale of PropertSr, Plant & Equipment
Purchase of current investments
Purchase of non-current investments
Investment in bank deposits
(original maturity more than 3 months)

Redemption/maturity of bank deposits
(original maturity more than 3 months)
Sale of non-current investment
Sale of current investment
Loans and advances movement
Cdpital Advance given
Other Financial assets movement
Dividend income
Interest Income

(30,532.19)
587.56

(74,29O.OO],
(97,426.tt1

1,69,091.16

4,924.33
5,314.89
9,086.25

(63,254.28l.
(1,850.73)
1,735.96

28,226.28

(3,947.821

(11 ,554.99)
(56,667.62l'

(24,839.61l'

1,313.95

(10,948.14)

tzo.sst
t,LL7.O7

26,945.LO
Net Cash used ln Investing Activities t48.386.881 178.658.651

Itl0US I'ttT IECHN0L0GItS PUT' LTII

\SnA^l

Dkectal

IttlDt s HET TEGHN0L0GIES ${ hr*l
lndus Net Technotogies Pvt. Ltd. k}**lV 'l \\'

[d,*,.9^"-^"' Dhecto'

Company Secretary
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C. Cash Elow from Elnanclng Actlvltles
Proceed /(Repayment) From long term finanace
Interest Expense
Dividend Paid

11)(23
(38,997.67)

(2,468.s41
(31,215.00)

.Iiir

Net Cash used ln Financing Activitles (23.11) 172,6a1.2L1

Net Changes in Cash & Cash Equivalents (A+B+C) 19,890.95 (28,5O5.97)

Cash & Cash Equlvalents-Openlng Balance 64,58L.44 93.087.4L

Cash & Cash Equivalents-Closlng Balance a4,472.39 64,581.44

Notes:
1: The above Cash Flow Statement has been prepared under the "Indirect Method" as set out in Ind AS

- 7 "Statement of Cash Flows"

2: CASH AND CASH EQTIIVALENTS:
Cash and cash equivalents as above 84,472.39 64,58L.44
Unrealised gain/(loss) on foreign currency cash and cash
equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents (Note 10) 84,+72.39 64,58L.44

3: Net Cash Flow from Operating Activities includes an amount of { 4053.80 Thousands (2022 - <
4OOO.97 Thousands ) spent towards Corporate Social Responsibility.

The accompanying notes form an integral part of the Financial Statements

As per our report ofeven date attached.

FOR PAl{Dfiiqff{t & ASSOCIATES For and on behalf of t}re Board Of Directors of
Charteffi$ffit&s Indus Net Technologles Private Limtted
Fi.- Pdor-(trati.rr.r wYA\"r.--332724F- rrrnno rrET TEfiuf,lnl nGtFS p\i'

ITUUUS I{ET TECHIIIOI.{)GIES PVI. II&(oLMTA \';1
N.33272181?
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INDUS NET TECHNOLOGIES PRTVATE LIMTTED

(Company Identlflcation No: U721OOWB2OO7PTC I 15875)

Reconclllatioa Statement of Profit aad Loss as prevlously reported under IGAAP to IND AS

(Amoutrt ln { Thousands, except otherwise stated)

Particulars
For the Year ended 3L ]|/f.arch 2022

Note Indtan GAAP AdJustments trnd AS

I

II

ru

Iv
V

VI

VII

uII

x
x

Revenue from operations

Other Income

Total lncome

Employee benefit expense

Finance costs

Depreciation and amortisation expense

Other expenses

Total expeases

Profit/(loss) before exceptional items and tax (I+II-UI)

Exceptional items .

Profit/(loss) before tax (IV-V)

Tax expense:

(1) Current tax

(2) Deferred tax

(3) Income Tax for earlier Years

Profit/(loss) for the period (VI-VII)

Other Comprehensive Income

Items that will not b6 classified to statement of Profit

Remeasurements of the defined benefit liabilities/(ass

Total Comprehenslve Incoae for the Year

18

L9

20

2t

2

22

or Loss

'et)

6,84,671.49

34,574.79 5,358.12

6,84,671.49

39,932.9t

7,19,246.29 5,358.12 7,24,604.40

4,O7,314.69

3,7t4.77

1,938.46

1,36,338.99

2,268.26

(8.28)

(6,395.92)

4,09,582.95

3,706.49

1,938.46

L,29,943.07

5,49,306.89 (4,135.951 5,45,170.96

1,69,939.39

L,69,939.39

47,LsL.22

4ao.2L

r02.66

L,79,493.4

1,79,43,3.44

47,L5L.22

4BO.2t

t02.66

L,22,2O5,3O 9,494,O5 1,31,699.35

L,22,20,5.3O

(5,373.96)

14,868.O1

(5,373.96)

1,37,O73.31
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INDUS NET TECHNOLOGIES PRIVATE LIMITED
(CompanyldentiflcationNo:U721oowB2oo7PTcl15875)
itotes to ltre Financial Statements for the year ended 31st March 2o.23

Corporate Informatlon

Indus Net Technologies private Limited ('the company) is a private company

domiciled in India ,id irr"otporated on 17th May,2OO7 under the provisions of

Companies Act, 1956. The Company operates the business of providing integrated

information technolory or System Integrator ('SI") and is the main business that

generates 1OO p"r""rrt of the ,eu"trre by designing computer systems and

computer communication systems to be able to work together effectively and

efficiently in order to meet the work needs of customers with a service system

consisting of software system application software. The Company has a turnkey

sales approach, stlrtinj from understanding the needs of customers, consulting

project'planning, systeir design, installation, operation maintenance, as well as

training to create an understanding of its use'

The Company's registered office as well as corporate office is situated at

Module#Sb2, 4th fl-oor, SDF Building, Sector-V, Salt Lake, Kolkata, Parganas

North West Bengal, Pin- 700091, India.

The financial statements are approved for issue by the company's Board of

Directors on SePtember 20,2023.

Note: 1. Signlficant accounting pollcies

This note provides a list of the significani accounting policies adopled in the

preparation of the standalone financial statements. These policies have been

lonsi"tently applied to all the periods presented in these financial statements and

in preparirrg tfr" opening Ind AS BJance Sheet as at Ol"t April, 2O2L fot the

prrpo"" of tiansition to Ind AS, unless otherwise indicated.

(af Basis of PreParation

The Ind AS financial statements of the Company have been prepared in

accordance with Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) notified under the

Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 (as amended frgm time to

timei and presentation requirements of Division II of Schedule III to the

companies Act, 2}tg, (Ind AS compliant schedule III), as applicable to the
'ilffi;.-me ina AS financial statements have been prepared on a historical

cost basis, except for certain assets and liabilities which have been measured at

fair values. (refer accounting policy regarding financial instruments)'

The financial statements upto the year ended March gL, 2022, were prepared

under the historical cost cbnvention on accrual basis in accordance with the

Generally Accepted Accounting Principles (Previous GAAP) applicable in India and
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the applicable 'A""orrr.tirg Standards as per the Companies (Accounting
Standards) Rules, 2006, notified under Section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013,
read with the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2OI4 and other accounting principles
generally accepted in India, to the extent applicable.

These are the Company's first Ind AS Financial Statements. The date of transition
to Ind AS is April 1, 2O2L. The mandatory exceptions and optional exemptions
availed by the Company on First-time adoption have been disclosed.

The Ind AS financial statements are presented in INR which is the Company's
functional and presentation currency and all values are rounded to the nearest
thousands, except when otherwise indicated. Accounting policies have been

consistently applied except where a newly issued accounting standard is initially
adopted or a revision to an existing accounting standard requires a change in the
accounting policy hitherto in use.

(bf Foreign currencies

Transactions in foreign currencies are initially recorded at functional currency
spot rates at the date the transaction qualifies for recognition. Monetary assets
and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are translated at the functional
currency spot rates of exchange at the reporting date. Exchange differences on
monetar5r items are recognised in profit or loss in the period in which they arise
except for exchange differences on foreign currency borrowings relating to assets
under construction for future productive use, which are included in the cost of
those assets when they are regarded as an adjustment to interest costs on those
foreign currency borrowings.

(cl Revenue recognition

The Company derives revenue primarily from software development and related
services. Arrangement with custombrs for software related services are either on
a fixed price, fixed time frame or on a real time and material basis.

Revenue is recognised on satisfaction of performance obligation at an amount
that reflects the consideration to which the Company expects to be entitled in
exchange for of providing services to Customer.

The Company's performance obligation is to provide software services.

IND AS 115 'Revenue from Contracts with Customers' which introduces five-step
approach to measuring and recognising revenue from contracts with customers.
Under IND AS 115, revenue is recognised on satisfaction of performance
obligation at an amount that reflects the consideration to which an entity expects
to be entitled in exchange for transferring goods or services to a customer.

Other Income

Other income is comprised primarily of interest income, dividend income,
gain/loss on investments and exchange gain/loss on translation of other assets
and liabilities.
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Dividend Income:

Dividend income id recognized when the right to receive pa5rment is established,
which is generally when shareholders approve the dividend provided it is
probable that the economic benefits associated with the dividend will flow to the
company and the amount of the dividend can be measured reliably.

Interest Income:

For all linancial instruments measured either at amortised cost or at fair value.
Interest income is recorded using the effective interest rate. A11 other income are
recognised on accrual basis.

Contract assets and Contract Liability

Revenue in excess pf invoicing are classified as contract assets (which we referred
as unbilled revenue) while invoicing in excess of revenues are classified as
contract liabilities (which we refer as unearned revenue)

Revenue from is recorded and recognised during the period in which the software
service is provided, based upon the estimated amounts due from customer.
Unbilled revenue is recorded for the service where the customer are not
discharged and invoice is not raised for the service. Revenue is measured at the
fair value of t]:e consideration received or receivables.

(d| Income Tax

The income tax expense or credit fo1 the period is the tax payable on the current
period's taxable income based on the applicable income tax rate for each
jurisdiction adjusted by changes in deferred tax assets and liabilities attributable
to temporary differences and to unused tax losses.

Deferred income tax is provided in full, using the liability method, on temporar5r
differences arising between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their
carrying amounts in the financial statements. Deferred income tax is determined
using tax rates (and laws) that have been enacted or substantially enacted by the
end of the reporting period and are expected to apply when the related deferred
income tax asset is realised or the deferred income tax liability is settled.

Deferred tax assets are recogllised for all deductible temporary differences and
unused tax losses only if it is probable that future taxable amounts will be
available to utilise those tempora4r differences and losses

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is a legally enforceable
right to offset current tax assets and liabilities and when the deferred tax
balances relate to same taxation authority. Current tax assets and tar liabilities
are offset where the entity has a legally enforceable right to offset and intends
either to settle on a net basis, or to realise the asset and settle the liability
simultaneously.

Current and deferred tax is recognised in profit or loss, except to the extent that
it relates to items recognised in other comprehensive income or directly in equity.

Itt0us ilET TECIr{0t0GtEs puT. LTL

:r^nn\Yfi^^ F , I

D*etrrar

lil0.Us }IET I ECllN0[ ri [,i -
lG,u\.-.-Uu, ,.

Dkectot



In this case, the'tax is also recognised in other comprehensive income or directly
in equit5r, respectively.

(efLeases
Leases are classilied as finance lease whenever tl:e terms of the lease, transfers
substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership to the lessee. All other leases
are classified as operating lease.

Assets acquired under financial lease are capitalised at fair value or present
value of the minimum lease payments at the inception of the lease ,whichever is
lower.
(f) Impatrment of assets

Assets are tested for impairment whenever the events or changes in
circumstances indicate that the carrying amount may not be recoverable. An
impairment loss ig recognised for the amount by which the asset's carrying
amount exceeds its recoverable amount. The recoverable amount is the higher of
an asset's fair value less costs of disposal and value in use. Non-financial assets
that suffered an impairment are reviewed for possible reversal of the impairment
at the end of each reporting period.

(g) Cash and cash equivalents

For the purpose of presentation in the statement of cash flows, cash and cash
equivalents includes cash on hand, deposits held at call with the financial
institutions, other short term, highly liquid investments with original maturities
of three months or less (except the instruments which are pledged) that are
readily convertible to known amounts of cash and which are subject to an
insignificant risk of changes in value, and bank overdrafts. Bank overdrafts are
shown within borrowings in current liabilities in the balance sheet.

(hf Financlal Instruments

Financial assets and linancial liabilities are recognised when a Company
becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the instruments.

Financial assets and linancial liabilities are initially measured at fair value.
Transaction costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition or issue of
financial assets and financial liabilities (other than financial assets and financial
liabilities at fair value through profit or loss) are added to or deducted from the
fair value of the financial assets or financial liabilities, as appropriate, on initial
recognition. Transaction costs direcfly attributable to the acquisition of financial
assets or financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss are recognised
immediately in profit or loss.

All recognised linancial assets are subsequently measured in their entirety at
either amortised cost or fair value, depending on the classification of the financial
assets

Investment and other financial assets

Investment in Subsidiaries are carried at cost less provision for impairment, if
any. Investments in subsidiaries are tested for impairment whenever events or
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changes in circumstances indicate that the
recoverable.

(if Classificatlon

The company classifies its financial assets in
categories -

carrying amount may not

the following measurement

Those to be measured subsequently at fair value (either through other
comprehensive income or through profit or loss), and
Those measured at amortised cost

The classification depends on the entity's business model for managing the
financial assets and the contractual terms of cash flows.

For assets measufed at fair value, gains and losses will either be recorded in
profit or loss or other comprehensive income. For investments in debt
instruments, this will depend on the business model in which the investment is
held. For investments in equity instruments, this will depend on whether the
company has made an irrevocable election at the time of initial recognition to
account for the equity investment at the fair value through other comprehensive
income..

(iif Measuremgnt

At initial recognition, the company measures a financial asset at its fair value
plus, in the case of a financial asset not at fair value through profit or loss,
transaction cost that are directly attributable to the acquisition of the financial
asset. Transaction costs of financial assets qarried at fair value through profit or
loss are expensed in profit or loss.

The company subsequently measures all equity investments at fair value. Where
the company's management has elected to present fair value gains and losses on
equity investments in OCI, there is no subsequent reclassification of fair value
gains and losses to profit or loss. Dividends from such investments are
recognised in profit or loss as other incorne when the company's right to receive
payments is established.

Changes in the fair value of financial assets at fair value through prolit or loss
are recognised in other gun/ (losses) in the statement of profit or loss.
Impairment losses (and reversal of impairment losses) on equity investments
measured at FVOCI are not reported separately from other changes in fair value.

(iiil Impairment of financial assets

The company assesses on a forward looking basis the expected credit losses
associated with its assets carried at amortised cost and FVOCI debt instruments.
The impairment methodolory applied depends on whether there has been a
significant increase in credit risk.
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For trade receivables only, the company applies the simplilied approach
permitted by Ind AS 109 Financial Instruments, which requires expected lifetime
losses to be recognised from initial recognition of the receivables.

(lvlDerecognitlon of flnaaclal assets

A financial asset is derecognised only when

The company has transferred the rights to receive cash flows from the
financial asset or
Retains the contractual rights to receive the cash flows of the financial
asset, but assumes a contractual obligation to pay the cash flows to one or
more recipients.

Financial Liabilities and equlty Instruments

(t) Classificatlon as debt or equity

Debt and equity instruments are classified as either financial liabilities or as
equity in accordance with the substance of the contractual arrangement.

(iif Equity Initruments

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual interest in the
assets of an entity after deducting all of its liabilities. Equity instruments issued
by the Company are recognised at the proceeds received, net of direct issue
costs.

(itt) Compound financial instruments

The component parts of compound instruments (convertible instruments) issued
by the Company are classified separately as financial liabilities and equity in
accordance with the substance of the contractual arrangement. At the date of
issue, the fair value of the liability component is estimated using the prevailing
market interest rate for a similar non-convertible instrument. This amount is
recorded as a liability on an amortised cost basis using the effective interest
method until extinguished upon conversion or at the instrument's maturity date.
The equity component is determined by deducting the amount of the liability
component from the fair value of the compound instrument as a whole. This is
rdcognised and included in equity, net of income tax effects, and is not
subsequently remeasured.

(ivf Flnanclal guarantee contract llabilitles

Financial guarantee contract liabilities are initially measured at their fair values
and, if not designated as at FVTPL, are subsequently measured at the higher of:
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The "-orht of the obligation under the contract, as determined in
accordance with Ind-AS 37 provisions, contingent Liabilities and
Contingent Assets; and

o the amount initially recognised less, where appropriate, cumulative
amortisation recognised in accordance with the revenue recognition
policies.

(vf Ftnancial Ltabittties

Financial liabilities are classified as either financial liabilities 'at FVTPL'or bther
financial liabilities'.

Fiaancial Liabilities at I\t"fPL

Financial liabilities are classified as at FVTPL when the linancial liability is either
held for trading or it is designated as at FVTpL.

A financial liability is classilied as held for trading if:

o it has been acquired or incurred principally for the purpose of repurchasing
it in tJle near term; or

' on initial recognition it is part of a portfolio of identified financial
instruments that the Company manages together and for which there is
evidence of a recent actual piattern of short-term prolit taking; or

o it is a derivative that is not designated and effective as a hedging
instrument.

A financial liability other than a financial liability held for trading may also be
designated as at FVTPL upon initial recognition if:

e such designation eliminates or significantly reduces a measurement or
recognition inconsistency that would otherwise arise; or

o the financial liability forms part of a Company of financial assets or
Iinancial liabilities or both, which is managed and its performance is
evaluated on a fair value basis, in accord.ance with it e company,s
documented risk management or investment strategr, and information
about the companying is provided internally on that basis; or

o it forms part of a contract containing one or more embedded derivatives,
and Ind-AS 109 Financial Instruments permits the entire combined
contract to be designated as at FWpL.

Financial liabilities at FWPL are stated at fair value, with any gains or losses
ansing on remeasurement recognised in the statement of prolit ,nd 1o"", except
for the amount of change in the fair value of the financial liability that is
attributable to changes in the credit risk of that liability which is recognised in
other comprehensive income.

The net gain or loss recognised in the statement of profit and loss incorporates
arLy interest paid on the financial liability.
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(vif Other nlr"o.i"t liabitlties

Other financial liabilities, including borrowings, are initially measured at fair
value, net of transaction costs.
Other financial liabilities are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the
effective interest method, with interest expense recognised on an effective yield
basis.
The effective interest method is a method of calculating the amortised cost of a
financial liability and of allocating interest expense over the relevant period. The
effective interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash
payments through the expected life of the financial liability, or (where
appropriate) a shorter period, to the net carrying amount on initial recognition.

(vttf Offsetting flnancial instruments

Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net amount reported in the
balance sheet wheh there is a legally enforceable right to offset the recognised
amounts and there is an intention to settle on a net basis or realise the asset and
settle the liability simultaneously. The legally enforceable right must not be
contingent on future events and must be enforceable in the normal course of
business and in the event of default, insolvency or bankruptcy of the Company or
the counterparty.

(if Property, plant and equipment

As at the date of transition to Ind AS i.e. April 01, 2O2t. The company has elected
to continue with the carrying value of all of its property, plant & equipment
recognised as at March 3I, 2O2L ineasured as per previous GAAP and use that
carrying value as the deemed cost to propert5r, plant & equipment as on April 01
2027.

Property, plant and equipment is stated at cost, net of accumulated depreciation
and accumulated impairment losses, if any. The cost comprises purchase price,
cost of replacing part of the plant and equipment, borrowing costs if the
recognition criteria are met and directly attributable cost of bringing the asset to
its location and condition necessary for the intended use. Any trade discounts
and rebates are deducted in arriving at the purchase price. When significant
parts of plant and equipment are required to be replaced at intervals, the
Company depreciates them separately based on their specific useful lives.
Likewise, when a major inspection is performed, its cost is recognised in the
carrying amount of the plant and equipment as a replacement if the recognition
criteria are satisfied. All other repair and maintenance costs are recognised in
statement of prolit and loss as incurred. The present value of the expected cost
for the decommissioning of an asset after its use is included in the cost of the
respective asset if the recognition criteria for a provision are met.

An item of propert;r, plant and equipment and any significant part initially
recognised is derecognised upon disposal or when no future economic benefits
are expected from its use or disposal.A.y gain or loss arising on derecognition of
the asset (calculated as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the
carrying amount of the asset) is included in the income statement when the asset
is derecosnised.
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Subsequent op"rraiture is capitalised only if it is probable that the future
economic benefits associated with the expenditure will flow to the company and
the cost of the item can be measured reliably.

Property, plant and equipment under installation or construction as at the
balance sheet date is shown as capital work-in-progress and the related advances
are shown as under Non current assets.

Depreciation is calculated on a written down value method over the estimated
useful lives of the assets as follows:

SL.
No.

Block

S1. No. Block Useful Lives
estimated by the management (in

years)

1 Air Conditioner 10
2 Office Equipment 5
3 Computer equipment 3
4 Furniture & Fixture 10
5 Vehicles 8
6 Video Conferencins 5
7 Network Equipment 6
8 Electrical Installations 10
9 Telephone / Mobiles 5

10 Television 5

Intangible assets

As at the date of transition to Ind AS i.e. April 01, 2021. The company has elected
to continue with the carrying value of all of its intangible assets recognised as at
March 3L,2O2l measured as per previous GAAP and use that carrying value as
the deemed cost to intangible assets as on April 01 2021.

Intangible assets acquired separately are measured on initial recognition at cost.
The cost of intangible assets acquired in a business combination is their fair
value at the date of acquisition. Following initial recognition, intangible assets are
carried at cost less accumulated artorttzatton and accumulated impairment
losses, if any.

The useful lives of intangible assets are assessed as either finite or indefinite.
Intangible assets with linite lives are amortised over the useful economic life and
assessed for impairment whenever there is an indication that the intangible asset
may be impaired. The amortisation period and the amortisation method for an
intangible asset with a finite useful life are reviewed at least at the end of each
reporting period. Changes in the expected useful life or the expected pattern of

! consumption of future economic benefits embodied in the asset are considered to
i modify the amortisation period or method, as appropriate, and are treated asi changes in accounting estimates. The amortisation expense on intangible assets

with finite lives is recognised in the statement of profit and loss unless such
expenditure forms part of carrying value of another asset.

Intangible assets with indefinite useful lives are not amortised, but are tested for
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impairment anirually, either individually or at the cash-generating unit level. The
assessment of indefrnite life is reviewed annually to determine whether the
indefinite life continues to be supportable. If not, the change in useful life from
indelinite to finite is made on a prospective basis.

Gains or losses arising from derecognition of an intangible asset are measured as
the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the
asset and are recognised in the statement of prolit or loss when the asset is
derecognised.

Subsequent expenditure is capitalised only when it increases the future economic
benefits embodied in the specific asset to which it relates. A11 othel expenditure,
including expenditure on internally generated goodwill and brands, is recognised
in prolit or loss as incurred.

[f Borrowing Costs

Borrowings are recognised initially at fair value, net of transaction costs
incurred. Borrowings are subsequently stated at amortised cost. Any difference
between the proceeds (net of transaction costs) and the redemption value is
recognised in the income statement over tfre period of the borrowings using the
effective interest rate method. Borrowings are classified as current liabilities
unless the Company has an unconditional right to defer settlement of the liability
for at least 12 months after the reporting date.

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or
production of qualifying assets, which are assets that necessarily take a
substantial period of time to get ready for their intended use or sale, are added to
the cost of those assets, until such'time as the assets are substantially ready for
their intended use or sale.

A11 other borrowing costs are recognised in the statement of Profit and Loss in the
period in which tJrey are incurred.

(kf Provisions and contingent ltabitities

Provisions are recognised when the Company has a present obligation as a result
of a past event, for which it is probable that a cash outflow will be required and a
reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation. Contingent
liabilities are disclosed when the Company has a possible obligation or a present
obligation and it is probable that a cash outflow will not be required to setfle the
obligation. Provisions & Contingent Liabilities a.re revalued at each Balance Sheet
date. The company does not recognize a contingent liability but discloses its
existence in the standalone Ind AS Financial Statements.

(l) Emptoyee benefits

(tl Defined contribution plans

The company pays provident fund contributions to publicly administered
provident funds as per local regulations. The company has not further pa5rment
obligations once the contributions have been paid. The contributions are
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as below:

II{DII$ HET TITHilOIOGIE$ PVT, LIO.

accounted for a3 delined contribution plans and the contributions are recognised
as employee benefit expense when they are due.

(ii| Other long-term employee benefits obligations

The company has a policy on compensated absences which are both
accumulating and non-accumulating in nature. The Company's liability is
actuarially determined using the Projected Unit Credit method at the end of the
year in accordance with the provision of Ind AS 19 - Employee Benefits. The
Company recognizes the net obligation of a defined benefit plan in its balance
sheet as liability. Gains and losses through re-measurements of the net defined
benefit liability/(asset) are recognized in statement of profit & Loss.

(iiif Post-employment obllgations

The Company opepates a delined benefit gratuity plan in India, comprising of
Gratuity fund with Life Insurance Corporation of India. The Company's liability is
actuarially determined using the Projected Unit Credit method at the end of the
year in accordance with the provision of Ind AS 19 - Employee Benefits. The
Company recognizes the net obligation of a defined benefit plan in its balance
sheet as an asset or liability. Gains and losses through re-measurements of the
net defined benefit liability/(asset) are recognized in other comprehensive income
and are not reclassilied to profit or loss in subsequent periods. The actual retum
of the portfolio of plan assets, in excess of the yields computed by applying the
discount rate used to measure the delined benefit obligation is recogniz.ed, in
other comprehensive income. The effect of any plan amendments are recognized
in the Statement of Profit & loss.'

(mf Earnings per share

The basic earnings per share ("EPS") is com$uted by dividing the net prolit after
tax for the year by the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding
during the year. For computing Diluted earnings per share potential equity
shares are added to the above weighted average number of shares.

(nf Dividend distributed to Equity shareholders is recognised as distribution to
owners of capital in statement of changes in Equity ,in the period in which is
paid.

(o) Corporate Social Responslbility {.CSR,| expeaditure

The company charges its CSR expenditure during the year to the statement of
profit and loss. Refer note no 37 for details.

(pf Recent accounting pronouncements

Ministry of Corporate Affairs f'MCA") notifies new standard or amendments to
the existing standards under Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules as
issued from time to time. on March sl, 2023, MCA amended the companies
(Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 by issuing the Companies (Indian
Accounting standards) Amendment Rules, 2023, applicable from April l, 2o2s,

lndus Net Technologles Pvi' Ltd"
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Ind AS f - pr.".otation of Flnancial Statements

The amendments require companies to disclose their material accounting policies
rather than their significant accounting policies. Accounting poliry information,
together with other information, is material when it can reasonably be expected
to influence decisions of primary users of general purpose linancial statements.
The Company does not expect this amendment to have any signifrcant impact in
its financial statements.

Ind AS 12 - Income Taxes

The amendments clari$r how companies account for deferred tax on transactions
such as leases and decommissioning obligations. The amendments narrowed the
scope of the recognition exemption in paragraphs 15 and 24 of Ind AS 12
(recognition exemption) so that it no longer applies to transactions that, on initial
recognition, $ve ripe to equal taxable and deductible temporarJr differences. The
Company is evaluating the impact, if any, in its financial statements.

Ind AS 8 - Accounting Policies, Changes in Accountlng Estimates and
Errors

The amendments will help entities to distinguish between accounting policies
and accounting estimates. The delinition of a change in accounting estimates has
been replaced with a definition of accounting estimates. Under the new
delinition, accounting estimates are omonetary amounts in financial statements
that are subject to measurement uncertaint5/. Entities develop accounting
estimates if accounting policies require items in financial statements to be
measured in a way that involves measurement uncertainty. The Company does
not expect this amendment to have any significant impact in its financial
statements.

IIIOUS ITET TECHT{OLOEIES PYT. LII).
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INDUS NET TECHNOIOGIES PRIVATE LIMITED
{Company ldentlficatloa No: U72 1 OOWB2OOTPTC 1 1 5 875)

Notes to the Flnanclal Stateroents for the year ended 31 March 2023
lnt

31 March 2023
4. Non Current Inrrestment

Inrrcstaent tn Equtty Iastruments
In subsldi,arles (Carried at Cost|
Unquoted fully patd up

- Indus Net Technologies INC- USA
- Indus Net Technologies Pte Ltd - Singapore
- Indus Net Techshu R/t. Ltd.
- Indusnet Computech Pvt. Ltd.

Investment la Assoclates (Carrted at Costl
Unquoted fully patd up

- Algo Energrtech Ventures Rrt. Ltd.
- Codebuddy Brt. Ltd.

Investment in Unquoted Shares(Carrled at fair
value through Other Comprehenslve Incomel

- Capillary Technologies India Ltd.
( LL,992 Equrty Shares with face Value Rs. 2 /- eachl
Investmeat ln Convertible Debentures (Carrled at
amortlsed costl

- Willsbery Online Services hrt. Ltd
Investment Carrled at falr value through Prolit &
Loss
Investment in Listed Equrty Shares (Refer annexure)
Investment in Bonds (Refer annexure)
Fixed Deposit (Including Accrued Interest)

Aggregate amount of quoted investments ani market
value there of

Aggregate amount of unquoted investments

4a. Investment (Currentl

Investment in Mutual Fund Quoted (Carried at
Market Value) (Refer aanexure)

therurise
l Aprii2022 202'!,

3,35,682.t4 90,329.49 4,63,113.62
5,26,006.66 1,85,448.22 5,O3,159.33

51.42
222.95
470.46

38,300.88

500.00
32,200.00

4,stL.52

38,235.79
75,831.50

1,14,067.29

4,11,939.37

5t.42
222.95
470.46

38,300.88

5t.42
222.95
470.46

38,300.88

500.00 500.00

4,SLr.52

500.00 500.00

14,997.80
35,563.70

50,561.50

L,34,386.72 5,02,659.33

1,58,965.22 86,832.58 70,041.85

L,58,965.22 86,832.58 7O,O41.85

5. Loans (Long-Term)
(Consldered goodrUnsecured unless otherwise stated)
Loans to related parties.
Loans to unrelated parties

6. Other Flnanclal Assets {Long-Terml
Security deposits

5a. Loans {Short-Term)
(Constdered goodrUnsecured unless otherwise statedl
Other advances
Advances to employees

15,762.85 L4,849.t0
10,000.00

13,900.96

15,762.85 24.A49,10 13,900.96

8,324.95 6,474.22 6,397.63
8,324.95 6,474,22 6,397.63

5,197.33 8,945.80
2,254.37 3,2t2.60 2,t04.24
7,461,7O 12,158.4O 2,1o4.24

IttrDus ilET TtcHll0t0Gtts pyT. LTItw
Dbe*-a*

lndus Net Technologles PvL Ltd'
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INDUS NET TECHNOLOGIES PRIVATE LIMITED
(Company Identlflcatloa No: U72 1 OOWB2OOZPTC 1 1 5 875)

Notes to the Ftnanctal Statements for the year ended 31 March 2O23
(Amount ln ( Thousands, except otherwise stated)

31 March 2O23 31 March 2022 1 Aprtl 2O21
7. Deferred Tax Assets

Openlng Balance :

Add /(Less) : Adjustment During ttre Year

L,449.9O

1,863.49

1,930.1 L

(480.21)

1,969.83

(3e.72)

8. Other Non Current Assets (Long-Term)
Capital advances

8a. Other Current Assets,(Short-Term)
ITC GST (including TDS on GST)
Others

9. Trade Recelvables (Short-Term)
Undisputed Trade Receivables - Considered good *

Less: Allowance for credit losses

* Ageing schedule Refer Note No. 38

INI}US I'ET TECHilOLOGITE PYI, tTD'

Nn^l,,
-?. Dkactot

4,5O9.51 3,38O.85 888.57

82,778.55
539.97

46,99L.83 77,883.9r

82,238.58 46,991.83 77,883.9L

63,254.28
63,254.28

2,635.36
t,874.t5

2,334.56
I,046.29

888.51
0.06

.',w':tlo'3u'1g["'n

I}r:nr:i.;,1

lndus NetTechnotogies 
Pvt' Ltd'
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INDUS NET TECHNOLOGIES PRIVATE LIMITED
(Company Identllication No: tt7 2 IOOVIB2OOZPTC I 1 S 8 ZS)

Notes to the ['inancial statements for the year ended 31 March 2o23

3L March SL March 01 April 2O2t

1O. Cash and cash equivalents
Cash on hand
Balances with banks
Fixed deposits maturity for 3 months or Less than 3 months
Current bank accounts

11. Other bank balances
Fixed deposits maturity for more than 3 months but less
than L2 months

12. Current tax asset
Income Tax

nlDus iltT TECHil0I0GES PyT. rT0.

==r?ffn\bSI.Dheetor

67,315.79 46,786.Ot 79,035.63

- 4,L9,178.09 21.554.34
- +,Lg,L7g.og 21,554.34

2023 2022

350.71 L,252.64 743.45

13,309.3316,905.99 L6,5+2.79

55,010.93 l,gg,g2g.4L 1,25,900.91
55,OlO.g3 l,gg,g2g.4l 1,25,9OO.91

lil0t S t{ET TECHI{OI0G|ES pVT. Lt u.

(<$+*-ttf *\

Dltr,tol'
lndus Net Technologies Pvt. Ltd'

8;.-9"rn€.r3.
ComPanY Secretary
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IITDUS NET TF,CHNOIPGIES PRTVATE LIMITED
lCompauy Identiftcaffor No: U72lOOtrtBMO?pTCt 1SS?S!

Notes to the Financlal Statemeat! for tho year €nd€d Ol Uarch 2O2g

L3. Equity sharo caplta!

Authorlsed capltal
f,1O,OO,0OO equity shares ofRs.lO/- each ( (py _

1,1O,0O,O00 Equity Shares oft lO each)

1,1O,OOO.OO 1,1O,OOO.OO 5O,OOO.OO
The authorized equity share were SO,OO,O00 eqrity St 

"r",Issued and subecribed capltal

{96,73,440 Equity Shares of Rs 1O each) py 2,4t,836
equity shares ofRs. l0/- each

Pald-up capital
(96,73,440 Equity Shares of Rs tb each) p y 2,41,836
equity shares ofRs. l0/- each

__ __ _ lAmount ln {Thousands, eacept otherwise statedt
31 March g1 March '1 Aprtt

2o/2A 20/22 2o/2L

1,10,OO0.OO 1,10,ooo.oo 50,ooo.oo

96,734.40 2,418.36 2,418.36

96,734.40 2,41a36 2,418.36

96,734,40 2,418.36 2,418.36

al Reconclliatlon of equrty shares outstandrng at the begrnning and at the end of the year.
'31 [arch 2O23 ,O1 March 2ol

Equit5r shares at the beginning of the year
Add: Bonus Share issued during the year
Equlty shares at the end of the year

As on 31 March 2O23 As on 31 Matcla20122 As on 1 Aptll 2O2L
No ofshares % holdtng No ofshares % holding No ofshares % holding

N-ote: Pursuant to the approval ofBoard oroirector trre company approved the bonus issue of94,31,604 equity share offace valueof Rs' lo each for an amount aggregating to Rs. 9,43,16,04d ( f;Iyf-g 
"p 

uy ."/of capitalization or rr"e osJues ) to the existingshareholders of the company unaeiure lrovisions oicompanies ir"i, zorb u.ra il otrre, applicable laws & regulations.

b) Rights/preferences/restrictions attached to equity shares
ltre company has only one class of.equity.shares having a par value ofRs.10 per share. Each holder ofequity shares is entitled toone vote per share'In the event of liquidation of the comp3ny, the holders or equity sirares will be entitled to"receive remaining
3ffi::"*frT".#ffi'ffi3i::bution of all preferential amounts. rne aistriiuion will be in proportion tL the number orequity

c| Detalls ofshareholdera holding more than Syo shares in the Company

Raghunath Prasad Rungta
Abhishek Rungta

Bharat Hari Berlia

Raghunath prasad Rungta

Abhishek Rungta

IIDUS ITET TESHI{OIOEIES PYT. TTD.w

8,00,000

71,80,5r6

16,92,920

8.27o/o

74.23o/o

17.5Oo/o

20,000 8.270/o

1,79,513 74.23o/o

42,323 L7.500/o

As on 31 Match 2ol22

20,000 8.27Vo

1,79,513 74.23Vo

42,323 l7.5Oo/o

Ason 1 April2o2t

c) Details of Equtty chares beld by promoter at the Ead of the year

As on 3l [arch 2O2O

No of shares o/o holdlng No ofshares % holdtng No ofshares % holding

8,00,000

71,80,516

8.27o/o 20,O0O 8.22o/o

74.23o/o 1,79,513 74.23o/o

20,000 8.270/o

1,79,513 74.230/o

lndus Net Technologies pvt.

$;*-L,*^^'

rr{grls tEr TECHTT0mQES Pyr. ,.. ^ -K$tltr*Jlr- J N .
Ltd.

2,47A36

p\
3t KoLKATA \t

W#
D*eetor

Company Secretary

Elector



INDUS NET TECHNOLOGIES PRTVATE LIMITED
(Company ldentllication No: U72 1OOWB2OO7PTC1 158751

Notes to the Financlal Statements for the year ended 31 March 2O23

(Amount in t Thousands, except otherwise stated)

31 March 2O23 '31 Ilrtr.arch 2022 L Aptil2O2L
14. Other Equity
Retained Earnlngs
Opening Balance
T/f to General Resenre
Dividend
Depreciation Adju stment
Profit/(Loss) for the Year

Securities Premium Resenre
Opening Balance
Add: Adjustment during the year

General Resenre
Opening Balance
Add: Transferred from Retained Earnings
kss: Utilized for Bonus Issue

Capitat Reseve
Opening Balance
Add: Adjustment during the year

Other Comprehensive Income
Opening Balance
For the year

t,02,787.65 1,31,699.35
5,92,867.15 6,91,993.21

17,607.O7

9,654.65

3,358.37 5,373.96
8,732.33 5,373.96

8,17,335.99 8,25,502.83 7,L9,t44.93

5,92,867.15

(19,996.921

6,91.,883.21
(2,00,000.00)

(3t,2L5.17l,
499.76

6,75,657.88

L7,607.O7 t7,607.O7

17,607.O7

2,00,000.00

(94,316.O41

L7,607.O7

2,00,000.00

1,05,693.96

9,654.65

2,OO,OOO.OO

9,654.65

9,654.65

'5,373.96

9,654.65

15. Borrowings (Long-Term)
Indus Net Finvest Resources Rrt. Ltd.

15a. Borrowtngs {Short-Term}
Secured
F?om ICICI Banks

16. Provisions (Long-Term)
for Gratuity

16a. Provlsions (Short-Term)
Provision for Gratuity

38,997.67
38,997.67

15,000.00
15,OOO.OO

2t,96L.90 23,gt6.go 23,495.25
2L,961.90 23,816.90 23,495.25

154.04 L49.72 t46.42
154.04 149.72 L46.42

INOUS iIET TECHI{OIOGIES PVT. LIIL

4,
Dkeeta

lndus Net TechnAtogies pvt. Ltd.

[*^-,X'^-*'
Company Secretary

lnous ilET TECHN0toGtts PyT. LTO'GF*$-; -. \.llt

ffiqffi

Dkeetdt
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INDUS NET TECHNOLOGIES PRIVATE LIMITED
(company ldenfification No: u72 loowB2oozprcl lsgzsl

Notes to the Financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2023

17. Trade payables
Due to micro, small and medium enterprises
Due to others

* Ageing schedule Refer Note No. 39

18. Other financial liabilities (Short-Termf
Liabilities for Expenses
TDS payable
GST payable
P Tax Payable
PF & ESI payable
Dividend Payable
ICICI Bank Overdrdft

19. Other current Habilities
Advance from customers

2O. Other Current Tax Liabiltty
Provision For Income tax

rlrlDus ttET Tt8Hr{ot0ctEs pvT. rItI

31 March 31 March
2o23 2ol22 I Aprit2O2t

t4.o2

3,126.43 4,L46.23 1,786.82

357.76 5,572.9t 7,475.60
10,935.35 12,660.95 5,422.69
7,910.18 4,136.53 2,370.75

126.85 111.40 96.01
3,600.78 t,393.71 764.40

t7,gg7.2L
19.53 87.81

- 1n,n4c4 -_ 1,oo4.24

Note: Trade payable includes due to suppliers under Micro, Small & Medium enterprises
Development Act, 2006 ( MSMED Act, 2016). Amount due to suppliers under ttre tristraBp Act, 2006
has been determined to the extent such parties have been identified on the basis of information
available with and filing made by the company. the company has not received any claim for interest
from any suppliers as at teh balance sheet date .

:>\"(\\E0^I .

DfaE**

It{ous HET TECHil0t06lEs PvT. tI&

lndus Net Technotogies evt' Ltd'fur|'*ss -\ l-'tl'
Drcfid

/51*.-t'-.'-'' 
ComPanY Secretary

p*q
o./ r(oLMrA \Pt

qH#

)



INDUS NET TECHNOLOGIES PRTVATE LIMITED
( company Identificaff on No : uz2 l oowB 2oo7 H.cfis8zsl

Notes to the Pinanclal statements for the year ended 3l March 2o2B

(Amount in T Thousalqs, except oth
31 March 3t March 2O2,

20.23
21. Revenue from operatlons
Sale of Services (Export)
SaIe of Services (Domestic)

22. Othet income
Interest income from bank deposits
Interest on Bond
Dividend Income
FV gain/(loss) on investments
Interest on Income Tax Refund
ProIit on Sale of Fixed Assets
Foreign Exchange Fluctuation
Interest on Loan
Miscellaneous Income

23. Employee beneflt expenses
Salaries, wages and. bonus
Contribution to provident and other funds
Staff Incentive
Gratuity Expenses
Employee Insuarance E><penses
Staff welfare
Director Remuneration

4,63,675.97
3,76,036.62

8,39,712.49

23,643.O2
3,230.95
1,735.96
3,774.93

963.40
545.80

3,595.15
1,352.31

3.10

+,19,669.75
2,65,OO2.74

6,84,671.49

24,341.13
1,149.35
1,177.07
5,359.12

6,495.70
t,454.62

26.92

39,844.52

4,73,799.54
tg,g27.69
9,106.50
6,637.20
6,963.01
5,L77.40

28,000.00
5,48.511.3s

-

39,932.91

3,52,652.26
11,639.40
4,L76.75
5,698.98
6,904.99

6tt.27
28,000.00

4.O9.582.95

-

]llotjs IET TECHT{0toGlts Pur. LTII

:=:6.frt\\trlly
Dke&d

lltlDt S ttlET TEGHT{0L0G|[S PVT. LIII

rndus Nerrechnobsies,"..;F*- 
J 

Y"
u5\;^x* 

g-"--.
CompanySecrehry

ffimq#



IIVDUS NET TECHNOLOGIES PRIVATE LIMITED
(Company I dentllication No: V 7 ZI:OOW B2OOZPTC I 1 S gZS)

Notes to the Financlal statements for the year ended Bl March 2o2o

lAmount io t T
31 March 2O23 ,31 March 2OZ,

24. Finance costs
Interest on:-

Working Capital
Others

Bank charges

25. Depreeiation and amortlsatlon
Deprecl,ation on

Tangible Assets.
Amortisatlon ou
Intangible Assets

26. Other erpeases
Audit Fees*
Marketing Expenses
Expenditure on CSR Activity
Postage & Courier Expenses
Allowance for credit losses
Exhibition Expcnses
Business Promotion Expenses
Professional Charges
Filing fees
Donation
Trade Licence Fees
General charges
Hiring Expenses
Sundry Balance Written Off
Insurance Expenses
Internet/ Connectivity & Telephone charges
Share Transactioh Charges & pMS Management Fees
Impairrnent of Investment
FV loss on investments
Loss on Redemption of Mutual Fund
Loss on Sale of Investment
Office Maintenance
Power and F\rel
Frinting & Stationary
Interest & Penalt5r
Rates and Taxes
Rent
Software Expenses
Travelling & Conveyance Expenses
Commission Expenses
Compensation Expenses
GST Expenses
Sponsorship Fees

23.tt

296.47

o.32
2,468.22

1,237.95
319.58 3,706.49

13,299.44

4t4.46

1,853.56

84.90
13,713.90 1,938.46

300.00
7,960.53
4,053.90

184.14
539.97

2,053.90
3,5L2.37

28,1 13.69
136.70

4.70
515.88

70,613.99
5,O22.46

516.58
3,132.58

617.30
500.00

L,473.4L
344.34

913.50
5,873.60

3,227.LO
L,445.L9

92.64
2.50

7,562.47
15,103.66
lo,44g.4l

198.10

300.00
90.80

4,009.47
253.93

r,srg.so
24,4O9.95

520.00
4,090.00

5.OO

314.38
35,169.04

200.28
3,L67.19

8.28

400.68

2.20
2,722.4O
7,799.97

287.77
L8.42

801.28
5,5L7.72

39,712.53
1,933.13

2,500.00
390.49218.O8

36s.00
,7.56

*Note: Pa5rment to auditors ( Exclusive of Goods and service Tax)

IT{DUS TIIET TECHI{OLOEIES PVT. I.TII,
lndus Net rechnorogres pvt. Ltd.ilu0urofffl]0t0cEfl]. ]m

$'i*t^^['t"" '-Fr\ncn\ElY,

ffi
ww

Dkestor
Company Secrotary

D*ecrol
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INDUS NET TECHNOLOGIES PRTVATE LIMITED
(Company ldeatificatlon No: UZ2 IOOWB2OOZPrc 1 1S87Sl

Notes to the Flnanclal statements for the year ended 81 March 2023

3O. Ftuanci,al lnstruments by category
(al Fatr value hlerarchy

All financial Assets & financial Liabilites have been fair valued using Level 3 hierarchy except castr & bankbalance which is faA valued using level I hierarchy.
Level 1 - Quoted (unadjusted) market prices in aitive markets for identical assets or liabilities
Level 2 - valuation teehniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to t]le fair value measurementis directly or indirecfly observable

Level 3 - Valuation techniques for which tJle lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement

IIIBUS T{ET TECHI{OLOCIE$ PI'T. tIU
:?{.f{.nt\nnrr,u
---- - D*ectu.

", 
Dumr!5To ro G rEKI. 1Te

lndus NstTechnotogies Pvt' Ltd' 
Dkectot

L.}^norfl.^,-."*r 'iv 
company secretary

(Amount ln { Thousands, except otherwlse statedt

Present value of delinea t

value ofdefined benefit obllgatlon as at the ond of

assets as at the start of the

assets as at the end ofthe

ffi

Mqqunt recognlsed ln the statement of pro4t and loss ls as
service cost 4t

it cost 4
loss/(Sain) recognized durine ttte year (

recognized in the statement of profit and loss -32 .45



(b) Fatr value of financiar assets and rtabiltties measured at amortised cost

ii) Castr and Cash equivalents
iii)'Other bank balances

82,238.58
84,472.39

46,991.83
64,581.44

4,19,178.09

46,991.83
64,581.44

4,19,178.O9

Flnanclal llabflitles
i) Borrowings
ii) Trade payables

15,000.00
3,126.43

r5,000.00
3,126.43 4,146.23 4,146.23

IilNtffi NET TECHIIOTOGIE$ PYT' LTIT '-'&[:"]#-:1"ri'l 
on

D*ectalaseoa"r,
Dtreergril lndus Not Technologies Pvt' Ltd'

h-"9,^"""
ComPanY Sec{etary
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INDUS ITET TECHITOLOGIES PRTVATE LTMITED
(Company Ideatlfication No: U721OOWB2OO7PTC1 1S8?S)

(Amouat ln t Thousands, except othersrise stated)
l[otes to the Flaancial Stateaents for the year erded 31 March 2O23

33. Flnancial rlsk management obJectlves and pollcles

Financlal ris& factors
The Company's activities expose it to a variety of frnancial risks: market risk, liquidity risk & credit risk. The
Company's focus is to foresee the unpredictabiLty of financial markets and seek to minimize potential adverse
effects on its financial performance. The Company uses derivative financial instruments to mitigate foreign
exchange related risk exposures.

(Af Market risk
Market risk comprises interest rate risk & foreign currency risk. Financial instruments affected by market risk
include loans and borrowings in foreign currencies.

(al Interest rate risk
As mqjority of the financial assets and liabilities of the company are either non-interest bearing or fixed interest
bearing instruments, the company's net eposure to interest risk is neglible.

(bf Foretgn currency rlsks
Foreigrr currency risk is the risk that the fair value of future cash llows of an exposure will fluctuate because of
changes in foreign exchange rates. The Company's exposure in foreign crurency is in loans denominated in
foreign currency. The Company is resricting its exposure of risk in change in exchange rates by way of Forward
Contracts.

The company has entered into foreign cuffency forward contracts to mitigate the risk of changes in exchange
rates on such bornvings.

(B) Llquidtty risk
Ultimate responsibility for liquidity risk management rests with. the Board of Directors, which has established an
appropriate liquidity risk management framework for the management of the Company's short-term, medium-
term and long-term funding and liquidity management requirements. The Company manages liquidity risk by
maintaining adequate reserves, banking facilities and reserve borrowing facilities, by continuously monitoring
forecast and actual cash flows, and by matching the maturity proliles of financiat assets and liabilities.

The table below summarises tlle maturity profile of the Company's financial liabilities based on contractual
undiscounted payrents -

Partlculars 31-Mar-23 3l-Mar-22 O1-Apr-21

Less than 1 year
Borrowings
Trade Payables
Other financial Liabilites

More than 1 year
Borrowinss

15,000.00
3,L26.43

40,847.66
4,146.23

23,963.2L
t,za6.az

L6,129.45

38,997.67

ff'l0u$ HIT TEtHllOUIElES PvT' tf&^

:\frfff\\YY\ N<'-'+ 
- *{*n

IiIDUS ITIET TEGHNOLOGIT|{ PU1. ' *

k^r!-*-w' J
lndus Net Technotogles Pvt. Ltd.

Aui"*.[^,^- '

ffim
Wffi

Company Secrekry
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(Cl Credtt rtsk
Credit risk refers to ttre risk that a counterparty vdll default on its contractual obligations resulting in financial
loss to the Company. Majority of the Company's transactions are earned in cash or cash equivalents. The trade
receivables comprise mainly of receivables from Insurance Companies, Corporate customers and Government
Undertakings. The Insurance Companies are required to maintain minimum reserve levels and the Corporate
Customers are enterprises urith high credit ratings. Accordingly, the Company's exposure to credit risk in
relation to trade receivables is considered low. Credit risk has always been managed by the company through
credit approvals, establishing credit limits and continuously monitoring the creditworthiness of customers to
which the company grants credit terms in the norrnal course of business.

Uote 34 Other aotes to the Flnanclal Statement
34.1 The financial statements are prepared as per Revised Schedule III to the Companies Act, 2013.

34.2 The previous year's figures have been reworked, regrouped, rearranged and reclassified wherever necessary.

T?rere are no Micro, fmall and Medium Enterprises to whom the Company owes dues, which are outstanding for
more than 45 days during the year and also as at 31st March, 2023. This information as required to be disclosed

g4.3 under the Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act,2006 (MSMED Act, 2006) has been
determined to the extent such parties have been identified on the basis of information available with the
Company.

Sl No Partlculars 31st March,
2023 31st March, 2O22

al
Principal amount remaining unpaid to any su@
accounting year

- On account of trade payables t4.o2

- On account of liabilities other than
trade payables

Total 14.O2

bl
Interest due thereon remaining un
accounting year

cl

Amount of irt".."
the payment made to the supplier beyond the appointed day during the
accounting year

dl

Amount of interest due and payable for the peri@
payment (which has been paid but beyond the appointed day during the
year) but without adding the interest specilied under the MSMED Act, 2006)

et
Amount of interest accrued and remaining @yeaf

0

Amount of further interest remaining due and payaOG-ver,-" U:E-
succeedingyear, until such date when the interest dues as above are
actually paid to the small enterprise

ritDus llET TECHtl0t0Elt$ PUT. tTD'

:>F\^r^\lD,
Directoc

II{DUS IIET TECHiIOLOGIES PVT. LT&

(q[,-I6 r K]-
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Dtectd



3'4'4 Balances lying as debtors, creditors, loans & advances are subject to confirmation to be received from parties.

3'+'5 The Company does not have any Benami property, where any proceeding has been initiated or pending against

s4.6 ffi;sTfr:*T"""T:liltHrffi:T["r;Hl companies struck olf under section 248 of the companies

The Comoanv does not have any charges or satisfaction which is yet to be registered with ROC beyond the34'? statutory'period.

The Company does not have any undisclosed income which is not recorded in the books of account that has
been surrendered or disclosed as income during the year (previous year) in the tax assessments under the
Income Tax Act, 196 1 (such as, search or survey or any other relevant provisions of the Income Tax Act, 196 1.

g4.g The Company is not dectared wilful defaulter by any bank or financial institution or other lender.

34.10 The Company has not traded or invested in Crypto currency or Virtual Currency during the Iinancial year.

35 Segmeat Reportlng - Dlsclosure pursuaat to Ind AS IOE

The Company is providing only technical services, which as per Ind AS 108 on "Segment Reporting" is considered to be theonly reportable business segment. Hence, operating segment-wise disclosures not required. Rurther, details of revenue
based on geographical location of customers is as bilow :

"36 -Capltal ManaEemeat

The company's objective when managing capital (delined as net debt and equity) is to safeguard the company,s
abt]ity to continue as a going concern in ordir to provide returns to the shareholders and benefit for other
stakeholders, while protecting and strengthening the Balance Sheet through the appropriate balance of debt andequity funding. The company manages its capital structure and makes aajustmenis toit, in light of changes toeconomic conditions arrd strategic objectives of the Company.

The Company monitors capital using a gearing ratio, which is total debt divided by total equity as below:

IilOUS t{ET TEIHI{OTOGIES PUT. tr0 lllBus ilET TEcHilot0Gltsfl,T. LIIL

lndus Net Technotogies PYt' Lfu1}-\.[v- J hS'"

S.IIo. Particulars As at
31.o3.20.23 As at 31.O3.2O22

a)

b)

India

Outside India

3,76,036.62

4,63,67s.87

2,65,O02.74

4,19,668.75

fotal 8,39,7L2.49 6,84,67L.49

Particulars
31st March

2023
31st March

2022
Borrowings ( Non-Current and Current) 38,998
Other Financial Liabilities (Interest accrued but not due) 23,963 t6,129

let Debt (Al 23,963 55,127
Equity Share Caoital 2,418 2,418
Other Equity 8,17,336 8,25,s03
I'Jglllw lIJl 8,L9,754 8,27,921qE4rruta MLro t\,=llr t't o.03 o.07

:E.,'arn\\n^ l,

A,i^rr^,(r"^^t
' company SeoetarY
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"3?-Expendlture ln Corporate Soclal Responsibllity
The of the CSR as follows:
Name of, the menber Designation
ShTi RAGHUNATH PRASAD RUNGTA Chairperson
Shri ABHISHEK RLTNGTA Member
ShN BHARAT HARI BERLIA Member

S.No. Partlculars As at
31.03.2023 As at 3L.03.2022

1

2
a

4

5

Average net profit of the Company for the last three financial years
Prescribed CSR Expenditure(2o/o of the average net profits)

Gross amount required to be spent by the company during the year

Amount Spent during the Year for purpose other than
Construction/Acqusition of any Assets
Cumulative Balance to be Spent

2,O2,690.07
4,053.90

4,053.90

4,053.80

2,00,473.33
4,OO9.47

4,O09.47

4,OO9.47

Details related to amount

As at 31.O3.2O22

to Related nditure incurred with Related partiesCSR

S,No. Name of Related Party [ature of Relatlonshlp As at
31.O3.2023 As at 31.O3.2O22

I Indusnet Foundation Trust in which a director is a trustee 4,053.80 2609.47
Total 4,O53.80 2,609.47

Nature of CSR activities: promoting education, Rural development projects & animal welfare

Contribution

'.ry IET TECHilo[oGtEs PUT. rTIt
:mRrnaar

ITIIDUS NET TETHNOLOGIFS PUT. LIT\

(\or!*.,uo o h.tr'

D*eena
lndus Net Technologies pvt. Ltd. Dk6dr?il\

[,;,1"..,*,
Company Secrehry

S.No. Partlculars As at
31.o3.20.23

1

,
Contribution to Charitable Trust
A,mount spent on Health Activities

4053.€ 2,609.47
1 40r) nn

Total 4,O53.80 4,OO9.47
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